
 

 

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation 
California State University San Bernardino / Palm Desert Campus 
Street Medicine Grant 
Date: April 21, 2020 
 
Section 1. Introduction 
  

a) CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation 
The CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation is a non-profit corporation chartered solely to support, 
benefit and advance the mission of California State University, San Bernardino. 

The Foundation actively pursues opportunities to promote the University, support fund-raising 
and build strong community relationships.  The Foundation encourages gifts and financial 
support while creating learning opportunities for students, alumni and the community that 
complement the University's teaching, research and public service goals driven by intellectual 
interaction and creativity. 

b) The CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation was created in 2011 as the charitable successor to The 
Foundation for California State University, San Bernardino. The prior foundation was 
established in 1995 and served as the primary auxiliary to the university, promoting charitable 
giving and supporting the enterprise operations. 

The Philanthropic Foundation board is comprised of volunteer directors, including community 
members and university leadership. The directors provide CSUSB with expertise, regional 
knowledge, fiduciary oversight and advocacy focused on enhancing the role of private giving in 
achieving the mission of the university. The Foundation works closely with, and is supported in 
its fundraising efforts by, the division of University Advancement. 

c) The CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation board of directors meets quarterly and is comprised of 49 
members. 

d) CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation boards minutes are drafted by staff within CSUSB division of 
university advancement. 
 
Description of Project 

 
In 2019, the CSUSB Department of Nursing received a one-year grant from the CW Fund to 
strengthen the street medicine programs in the Coachella Valley.  The Department of Nursing 
faculty and students are collaborating with the University of Riverside (UCR) School of Medicine 
(to be replaced by the Desert Regional Medical Center medical residents), Well in the Desert, 
and the Coachella Valley Volunteers in Medicine (CVVIM). 



In order to have nursing students involved, the program must have nursing faculty members to 
supervise them.  The CW grant allows the participation of CSUSB Palm Desert campus (PDC) 
nursing students by funding the service of two nursing faculty members to be their supervisors.  
  
The objectives of the program are: 

• To provide nursing faculty supervision to CSUSB PDC nursing students who will work with the 
medical teams at street medicine sites;  

• To engage CSUSB PDC nursing students at all degree levels in clinical healthcare activities as 
well as to provide student community volunteer opportunities; and 

• To collect data on numbers of students in the program, number of students successfully 
completing clinical hours and tracking numbers of persons served at the outreach sites. 
The nursing faculty members coordinate the activities of the nursing students who are assisting 
in the street medicine activities as well as consult with the various programs on additional 
collaborations.   
The grant also covers the equipment and supplies the students need to allow them to be most 
useful. That funding support ends August 31, 2020 so we are proposing a request to RAP to 
continue the purchase of the essential clinical supplies. 
 
Section 2. Unmet Need 
 

a) The Riverside County Department of Public Social Services reported in the 2019 Point-in-Time 
(PIT) Homeless Count Data Report Summary that “The 2019 PIT Count identified a total of 2,811 
sheltered and unsheltered homeless adults and children county wide (2,045 unsheltered and 
766 sheltered), which is 21% higher than the count in 2018 (2,310).  The report further states 
“the actual number of homeless individuals is estimated to be higher than PIT Count results due 
to ongoing challenges of locating homeless individuals.” 

The following summary provides highlights of the 2019 Riverside County PIT Count: 
 Overall Count Countywide 
• 2,811 total sheltered and unsheltered PIT count for 2019 (21% increase from 2018) 
• 2,045 total unsheltered PIT count for 2019 (21% increase from 2018) 
• 766 total sheltered PIT count for 2019 (21% increase from 2018) 
 Unsheltered Count by Sub-Populations Countywide: 
• Veterans – 107 total unsheltered PIT count for 2019 (8% increase from 2018) 
• Youth (18-24) – 181total unsheltered PIT count for 2019 (2% increase from 2018) 
• Children (17 or under) – Children went from 4 to 15 in the unsheltered PIT count for 2019. 
• Youth count total – 196 total unsheltered PIT count for 2019 (8% increase from 2018) 
• Chronically Homeless - 727 total unsheltered PIT count for 2019 (88% increase from 2018) 
• Families w/Children (interview only) – 2 total unsheltered PIT count for 2019 (50% 
decrease from 2018) 
• Elderly (aged 62 and over – interview only) – 129 total unsheltered PIT count for 2019 
(16% increase from 2018) (CoC-CORE@rivco.org). 

 
The largest increase in the PIT results are primarily in the Coachella Valley. The Coachella Valley 
region is comprised of nine cities and two Indian Tribal communities.   Eighteen percent of the 
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Riverside County general population lives in Coachella Valley, but 26% of unsheltered homeless 
people reside in Coachella Valley (Coachella Valley Association of Governments Homelessness 
Committee, January 16, 2019). 
 
In 2019, volunteers counted 612 unsheltered homeless individuals in the Coachella Valley.   The 
2020 count numbers, which will be released in the spring, are expected to be higher than that.  
(Desert Sun, Jan 29, 2020). 
 
A report to the Coachella Valley Desert Healthcare District Homeless Initiative states that “the 
number of people who experience unsheltered homelessness in the Coachella Valley is 
unacceptably high and increasing.”  Over the past four years, the number of unsheltered 
homeless persons has increased by sixteen percent (16%) since 2015; seventy-three percent 
(73%) of people who experience homelessness are unsheltered in Riverside County (Riverside 
CoC 2018 PIT report).”   
 
The unsheltered homeless count of 73% are unsheltered people and are described as Literally 
Homeless.  These are individuals/families who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime 
residence.  An inadequate nighttime residence is defined as not meant for human habitation, 
living in a shelter (Emergency shelter, hotel/motel paid by government or charitable 
organization), or exiting an institution where they resided for 90 days or less and were residing 
in emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately before entering 
institution.  
 
Another indication that the PIT is an undercount is the especially disturbing number is that 
3,000 children in Coachella Valley (CV) were counted as homeless across the three CV school 
districts with rates of homelessness nearly 10% in the Palm Springs Unified School District.   
 
Riverside County was able to provide program reports for four emergency shelter programs 
operating in the Coachella Valley. From these reports, the following observations are noted.  
More than 2,500 people were served by these four programs during a recent 12-month period.  
The largest number were households without children, then youth under the age of 18.  The 
smallest group were families with children.  Most were white, non-Hispanic households.  Most 
did not report physical and mental health conditions, however, chronic health conditions, 
mental health problems, and drug abuse were the most common conditions mentioned by 
shelter residents. 
 
Numerous reports indicate the Coachella Valley needs enhanced healthcare services for the 
homeless including mental health services.  Homeless people are known to utilize emergency 
rooms rather than traditional healthcare for a number of reasons.    First, there is limited access 
to primary and secondary care near homeless encampments.  Second, many homeless people 
distrust healthcare providers and seek help only when the need is serious. Third, many have no 
health insurance and, even if they would qualify for such insurance, they require help to sign up 
and to maintain the information.  Also, some are undocumented and fear exposure to U. S. 



Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) if they seek services.  Further, many healthcare 
providers will not accept publicly funded health insurance.  
  
The Homeless Initiative report describes the Health Homes Program (HHP), which is a program 
for frequent emergency room and hospital visits and is being implemented since 2019. This 
initiative could help hospitals comply with state discharge planning requirements (SB 1152). 
The goal of frequent user initiatives (also called “familiar faces”) is to break the costly cycle of 
healthcare services provided at emergency rooms to those who are homeless, that occurs when 
people repeatedly use high cost services due to long-term lack of financial resources and 
security.  The street medicine programs often prevent emergency room visits by treating 
relatively minor illnesses and injuries in the encampments and at locations where homeless 
individuals and families live or are gathered, often these locations are food panties or social 
services organizations.  
 
For these reasons, the street medicine teams provide a valuable service at no cost to these 
drastically underserved individuals and families.  
 
The CW grant provides efforts to work with all these programs and assist with this coordination.  
The proposal to RAP would help to continue these efforts. 
 

b) The population that will benefit from this grant are unsheltered people in the Palm 
Springs and Indio areas.  The Palm Springs population will be served by the street 
medicine clinic at the Our Lady of Guadalupe free lunch program sponsored by the Well 
in the Desert on Fridays.  The Indio population will be served through the Coachella 
Valley Volunteers in Medicine street medicine outreach serving homeless people in their 
encampments. 
 

c) The partners in Palm Springs are Well in the Desert and the UCR Family Practice.  The 
partner in Indio is the Coachella Valley Volunteers in Medicine and the Eisenhower 
Medical Center Family Medicine residency program.   

 
California State University, San Bernardino (CSUSB) Nursing Program 
 
The California State University San Bernardino (CSUSB) nursing department offers education to 
pre-licensure students and registered nurses seeking their baccalaureate degrees.    The 
participation in street medicine began in the Winter quarter of 2019 with nine students – three 
at each location. These students have been participating in the UCR School of Medicine street 
medicine program and the Coachella Valley Volunteers in Medicine (CVVIM) street medicine 
program.  We want to continue this collaboration, working with faculty and with the CSUSB 
Coyote student nurses’ association in their volunteering program.   
 
University of California, Riverside UCR Health Family Medicine Center/Street Medicine Program 
 



The UCR Health Family Medicine Center in Palm Springs, California involves a team of 
physicians, specialists and healthcare professionals providing healthcare to the communities of 
Inland Southern California.  The Center is affiliated with the UCR School of Medicine, bringing 
innovative, culturally sensitive primary and specialty care.  The vision is to improve the health 
of the people of Inland Southern California by developing innovative healthcare programs that 
will deliver quality healthcare within the Inland area.  Their motto is “Bringing Health Home.” 
 
The Center conducts a street medicine clinic every other Friday at the Our Lady of Guadalupe 
Church in Palm Springs during their free lunch program.  UCR medical residents and faculty see 
homeless people and persons who are in unstable housing situations after they are recruited 
and screened by the volunteer nurse and staff.  The CSUSB PDC nursing students recruit, 
screen, take vital signs, do appropriate testing such as blood glucose testing, and complete the 
appropriate sections of the client intake form which allows the medical residents to see more 
clients in an efficient manner.  In June 2020 the Desert Regional Medical Center (DRMC) will 
assume the medical residency program from UCR; CSUSB expects to work with the DRMC 
medical residents when they begin providing care at Our Lady of Guadalupe. 
 
Well in the Desert 
 
The Well in the Desert is a 501c3 non-profit organization that provides clothing, showers and a 
cooling center 7 days a week, plus nutritious hot meals 5 days a week. The Well offers 
emergency food assistance, weekly supplemental food distribution and a wide array of services 
through advocacy to those affected by poverty, including the working poor, the homeless, 
seniors, veterans, the handicapped and others in the western end of the Coachella Valley. 
 
The Well fuels programs for poverty prevention, directs services for poverty intervention, and 
executes an organized effort to advocate for the poor. The Well sponsors the Friday free lunch 
program at Our Lady of Guadalupe where the street medicine clinic is held. 
 
Section 3. Evaluation 
 

a) The project director proposes the following evaluation method for the proposal.   
For the quantitative evaluation, the director will report what equipment was purchased, how 
the equipment was utilized by the teams, and the number of people served by the teams.   
For the qualitative evaluation, the director will interview the nursing students involved in the 
teams; students will journal about the experience. 
 

b) We will not require an outside evaluation consultant because the project director has a 
doctorate in social science evaluation. 
 
Section 4. Budget 
 

a) The project will begin on September 1, 2020 and end on August 31, 2021. 
 



b) Other grantors will be approached to support the salaries of the nursing faculty needed to 
supervise the nursing students who serve the homeless people and the salaries for nursing 
student assistants to aid with the healthcare delivery and evaluation.   The total requests will be 
for $50,000 to $60,000. 
 

c) Small Grant budget template attached 
 

d) Budget justification  
 
 
 
Attachments in PDF Format 

• 990 

• Audited financial statements 

• Please attach a list of your current board of directors and their affiliations 

• Please attach a copy of your IRS determination letter 

  



CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation
California State University San Bernardino / Palm Desert Campus
Street Medicine Grant
Date: April 21, 2020

SMALL GRANT PROGRAM (SGP)  SGP 
REVENUES

SGP 
EXPENSES

LINE ITEMS 

1. Amount of money requested  from RAP Foundation  $         5,000.00 
2. Cash contributed to project/program by applicant organization  $                    -   
3. Grant(s) awarded from other grant based funding sources for 
project/program  $       62,880.00 

4. Grant(s) pending or applied for from other grant based sources for 
project/program  $       50,000.00 

5. Value of in-kind goods or services to support the project/program  $       55,604.00 
6. Personnel related expenses for project/program  $         750.00 
7. Facility related expenses for project/program  $                 -   
8. Equipment related expenses for project/program  $                 -   
9. Marketing related expenses for project/program  $                 -   
10. Supplies related expenses for project/program  $      4,000.00 
11. General Operating/Administration expenses for project/program  $                 -   
12. Other miscellaneous expenses for project/program-

CSUSB Philanthropic Fee of 5% is assessed on all gifts.
 $         250.00 

TOTALS  $     173,484.00  $      5,000.00 



CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation 
California State University San Bernardino / Palm Desert Campus 
Street Medicine Grant 
Date: April 24, 2020 
 

Street Medicine Budget Justifications 

1.  Program Name: Street Medicine / Palm Desert Campus 

2. None 

3. Grant for 2019-2020 for $62,8800 from the CW Fund for two part time faculty supervisors, 
student assistant stipends and supplies for September 1, 2019 to August 31, 2020. 

4. LOI submitted to the Desert Healthcare District Foundation for nursing faculty supervisors, 
nursing student assistants, consultant, and supplies.  Site visit delayed due to COVID-19 crisis. 

5. In-kind contributions 
 

Nursing faculty in courses with clinical     $40,000  
experiences in street medicine 50% of a fac. 
Member 
 
Nursing student volunteer time  
CVVIM 3 students/wk x 5 hrs/wk x 52 wks @ $12/hr   $9,360 
 
UCR Health 3 students/wk x 4 hrs/wk x 26 wks @ $12/hr. $3,744 
 
CUSB Admin. Support for payroll, benefits mgmt.,   $2,500 
purchasing, accounting, P.R., human resources -- not covered 
by requested overhead      ______ 
 
Total In-kind       $55,604 
 

6. Personnel 

Evaluation 

Project director time @ $80/hr and nursing   $ 800 
student assistant time @ $12/hr 

 
7. Facility        None 

8. Equipment       None 

9. Marketing       In-kind 

10. Supplies 

 For CVVIM street medicine outreach team   $2,000 



 For UCR street medicine clinic team    $2,000 

 **Supplies to be purchased include the following: Glucometer/supplies, Hand sanitizer,  face 
masks, gloves, BP cuffs, sharps container, bandages, tape, Ace bandages, Gauze, gauze pads, 
tape, alcohol swabs, otoscopes, thermometers, ointments, lip moisturizer, throat lozenges, 
betadine, and other 

11. General operating/Administration    In-kind 

12. Other 

 CSUSB Philanthropic Fee of 5% for grant administration  $ 250 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
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(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018) 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2019 2018

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,639,961$      3,121,394$      
Short-Term Investments 7,928,964 7,282,699
Other Receivables 286,537 286,634
Due From Related Party 29,068 -                   
Promises to Give, Net 1,567,892 1,293,758
Long-Term Investments 41,117,664 39,641,520
Long-Term Investments-CRTs 5,424,912 5,302,847
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 40,135 44,273

Total Assets 62,035,133$    56,973,125$    

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 136,314$         109,832$         
Due To Related Party 450,239 220,421
Accrued Liabilities 230,301 61,199
Other Long-Term Liabilities to Beneficiaries 968,310 1,536,753

Total Liabilities 1,785,164        1,928,205        

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions

Undesignated 1,040,623        498,986           
Board-Designated 338,809           -                   

Total Without Donor Restrictions 1,379,432        498,986           
With Donor Restrictions

Purpose Restrictions 17,752,873      14,904,414      
Endowment Fund 41,117,991      39,660,116      
Underwater Endowments (327)                 (18,596)            

Total With Donor Restrictions 58,870,537      54,545,934      

Total Net Assets 60,249,969      55,044,920      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 62,035,133$    56,973,125$    

 



CSUSB PHILANTHROPIC FOUNDATION 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018) 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018
Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

REVENUES
Contributions -$                  6,488,867$     6,488,867$     4,126,606$     
Interest and Dividends, Net 127,073            2,379,606       2,506,679       1,622,103
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 141,124            (619,729)         (478,605)         (145,031)         
Realized Gain on Investments 164                   450,803          450,967          909,139          
Deficit in Endowment Values 18,269              (18,269)           -                  -                  
Change in Value of Split Interest Agreements 350,876            -                  350,876          (246,840)         
Miscellaneous Income 40,979              -                  40,979            1,759              
Restrictions Released 4,356,675         (4,356,675)      -                  -                  

Total Program Revenues 5,035,160         4,324,603       9,359,763       6,267,736       

Transfers from Related Entities 281,100            -                  281,100          458,835          

Total Revenues 5,316,260         4,324,603       9,640,863       6,726,571       

EXPENSES
Program Expenses:

Scholarships 1,424,172         -                  1,424,172       1,375,254
Support Services 2,091,860         -                  2,091,860       1,965,690       

Management and General 407,867            -                  407,867          198,684          

Total Program and General 
   Expenses 3,923,899         -                  3,923,899       3,539,628       

Transfers to Related Entities 511,915            -                  511,915          586,076          

Total Expenses 4,435,814         -                  4,435,814       4,125,704       

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 880,446            4,324,603       5,205,049       2,600,867       

NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year 498,986            54,545,934     55,044,920     52,444,053     

NET ASSETS, End of Year 1,379,432$       58,870,537$   60,249,969$   55,044,920$   

 



CSUSB PHILANTHROPIC FOUNDATION 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Supporting Activities

Scholarships
Designated Gift 
Administration

Total
Program Activities

Management
and General Total Expenses

Administrative Costs -$                     142$                    142$                    -$                       142$                  
Bad Debts -                       -                       -                       121,275                 121,275             
Bank and Credit Fees -                       -                       -                       7,016                     7,016                 
Capital Outlay 4,034                   6,242                   10,276                  6,323                     16,599               
Conferences and Meetings -                       84,601                  84,601                  87,578                   172,179             
Contract Services -                       560,317                560,317                18,760                   579,077             
Depreciation -                       44,583                  44,583                  2,213                     46,796               
Dues, Memberships and Subscriptions -                       7,409                   7,409                   17,032                   24,441               
Insurance -                       13,969                  13,969                  1,003                     14,972               
Other Expenses 2,298                   397,846                400,144                48,868                   449,012             
Postage -                       6,247                   6,247                   275                        6,522                 
Printing -                       3,625                   3,625                   13,500                   17,125               
Professional Development and Training -                       1,082                   1,082                   4,408                     5,490                 
Professional Fees -                       21,346                  21,346                  -                        21,346               
Public Relations 805                      83,427                  84,232                  43,852                   128,084             
Rental, Equipment and Space -                       10,308                  10,308                  -                        10,308               
Scholarships 1,412,272             58,862                  1,471,134             -                        1,471,134          
Stipends, Room and Board -                       89,820                  89,820                  6,443                     96,263               
Supplies and Services 1,760                   537,724                539,484                23,562                   563,046             
Travel 3,003                   162,922                165,925                4,801                     170,726             
Utilities and Telephone -                       1,388                   1,388                   958                        2,346                 

Total 1,424,172$           2,091,860$           3,516,032$           407,867$                3,923,899$         

Program Activities
2019
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Supporting Activities

Scholarships
Designated Gift 
Administration

Total
Program Activities

Management
and General Total Expenses

Administrative Costs -$                     150$                    150$                    -$                       150$                  
Bad Debts -                       94                        94                        -                        94                     
Bank and Credit Fees -                       -                       -                       8,932                     8,932                 
Capital Outlay -                       9,211                   9,211                   -                        9,211                 
Conferences and Meetings -                       40,942                  40,942                  87,766                   128,708             
Contract Services -                       492,829                492,829                697                        493,526             
Depreciation -                       47,985                  47,985                  2,294                     50,279               
Dues, Memberships and Subscriptions -                       1,619                   1,619                   1,496                     3,115                 
Insurance -                       14,212                  14,212                  1,003                     15,215               
Other Expenses 14,984                  653,162                668,146                45,926                   714,072             
Postage -                       3,340                   3,340                   349                        3,689                 
Printing -                       11,045                  11,045                  (1,901)                    9,144                 
Professional Development and Training -                       501                      501                      1,363                     1,864                 
Professional Fees -                       19,460                  19,460                  2,922                     22,382               
Public Relations -                       61,120                  61,120                  31,277                   92,397               
Rental, Equipment and Space -                       18,339                  18,339                  -                        18,339               
Scholarships 1,356,034             80,624                  1,436,658             4,655                     1,441,313          
Stipends, Room and Board -                       2,962                   2,962                   -                        2,962                 
Supplies and Services 4,236                   473,760                477,996                11,258                   489,254             
Travel -                       28,612                  28,612                  -                        28,612               
Utilities and Telephone -                       5,723                   5,723                   647                        6,370                 

Total 1,375,254$           1,965,690$           3,340,944$           198,684$                3,539,628$         

Program Activities
2018
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
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(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018) 
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2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 5,205,049$    2,600,867$    
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
  cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 46,795           50,279           
Contributions With Donor Restrictions (262,021)        (862,653)        
Noncash investment (income) loss 478,605         145,031         
(Increase) decrease in:

Other receivables 97                  (21,000)          
Due from related party (29,068)          1,996             
Promises to give (274,134)        845,732         

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 26,482           (294,680)        
Due to related party 229,818         98,168           
Accrued liabilities 169,102         57,713           
Other long-term liabilities to beneficiaries (568,443)        (104,486)        

Total adjustments (182,767)        (83,900)          

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,022,282      2,516,967      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Payments related to the acquisition of capital assets (42,657)          (6,782)            
  Purchase/sale of short-term investments (646,265)        (2,520,125)     
  Purchase of long-term investments (24,249,065)   (9,107,176)     
  Sale of long-term investments 22,172,251    7,128,981      

  Net cash used for investing activities (2,765,736)     (4,505,102)     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Cash contributions for endowment 262,021         862,653         

  Net cash provided by financing activities 262,021         862,653         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 2,518,567      (1,125,482)     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,121,394      4,246,876      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 5,639,961$    3,121,394$    
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation (the Foundation) was created on July 1, 2011 pursuant to 
the general Non-Profit Corporation Laws of the State of California. The Foundation was organized 
to promote and assist education, administration and related services of California State University, 
San Bernardino. The Foundation operates as an auxiliary organization of the California State 
University, San Bernardino (University) under an operating agreement with the Trustees of the 
California State University (Trustees) which expires December 31, 2021. All fundraising activities 
are conducted by the University.  
 
Major Program Services 
 
The Foundation’s major program services include: 
  
Designated Gift Administration, services provided in support of designated gift and endowment 
funds. 
 
Scholarships, including grants-in-aid and other financial assistance to students.  
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Those estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Accordingly, actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Management also determines the accounting principles to be used in the 
preparation of the financial statements. A description of the significant accounting policies 
employed in the preparation of these financial statements follows. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation 
 
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The financial 
statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205. Accordingly, information regarding financial 
position, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence 
of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Foundation and changes therein are 
classified and reported as follows: 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations, and which may be designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of 
Directors. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
(continued) 

 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. 
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met 
by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature where the donor stipulates that resources be 
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction 
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for 
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 

 
Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions, unless use of the 
related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in 
net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or 
liabilities, other than endowment and similar funds, are reported as increases or decreases in net 
assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation. 
Expirations of restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled 
and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications between the 
applicable classes of net assets; net assets released from restrictions. 
 
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period 
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that 
is, when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions of property, 
plant, and equipment without donor restrictions concerning the use of such long-lived assets are 
reported as revenue of the net assets without donor restrictions. Contributions of cash or other 
assets to be used to acquire property, plant, and equipment are reported as revenue of the net 
assets with donor restrictions; the restrictions are considered to be released at the time of 
acquisition of such long-lived assets. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value. Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an appropriate 
discount rate commensurate with the risks involved. Amortization of discounts is recorded as 
additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on the 
contributions. An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is provided based upon 
management’s judgment including such factors as prior collection history, type of contribution, 
and nature of fundraising activity. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentrations 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid 
debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase.  
 
The Foundation maintains its cash in two financial institution accounts. The standard insurance 
amount under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) is $250,000 per depositor, per 
insured bank, for each account ownership category. These balances may at times exceed the 
insured limits. As of June 30, 2019, the Foundation’s cash balances exceeded the federally 
insured limits by $5,496,494. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
(continued) 

 
Investments 
 
Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in 
debt securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. The fair value 
of investments in securities is based on the quoted market price of the underlying securities. 
Investments in real estate are stated at acquisition cost. Unrealized gains and losses are included 
in the change in net assets. Short-term investments consist of debt securities with original 
maturities of twelve months or less. Long-term investments consist of debt securities with original 
maturities greater than twelve months. 
 
Prepaid Expenses 
 
Prepaid expenses are advance payments for products or services that will be used in the 
Foundation’s programs or activities in subsequent periods. 
 
Receivables and Allowances 
 
Other receivables are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Any allowance is 
based on prior years’ experience and management’s estimate of collectability. Management 
estimates that all receivables at June 30, 2019 are fully collectible, and therefore no allowance 
has been presented. 
 
Pledges Receivable 
 
Pledges receivable include pledges that are recorded at their present value based on applicable 
U.S. treasury yields for the applicable issue maturity. An allowance for uncollectible contributions 
receivable is provided based upon management’s judgment including such factors as prior 
collection history, type of contribution, and nature of fundraising activity.  
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost or, if contributed, at fair market value at the date 
of contribution. Intangible assets include patents and software. The Foundation’s policy is to 
capitalize additions and improvements that significantly add to productive capacity or extend the 
useful life of an asset and are above $5,000. Repairs and maintenance are charged to operations 
as incurred. Costs and related allowances for depreciation of property, plant and equipment sold 
or otherwise retired are eliminated from the accounts and gains or losses on disposition are 
included in the changes in net assets. Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
(continued) 

 
Donated Materials, Services and Other Assets 
 
Donated materials and other assets such as stocks, bonds and other long-lived assets are 
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as 
increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated 
asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and 
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as net 
assets with donor restrictions. The Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the 
donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Foundation 
reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time. 
 
Donations to the art collection are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of the donation and 
are not subject to depreciation. Items are considered to be part of the art collection if they are 
held for exhibition to the public, for educational purposes, or for research (and not for financial 
gain) and proceeds from the sale of collection items are to be reinvested in other collection items. 
 
No amounts have been reflected in the financial statement for donated services. The Foundation 
generally pays for services requiring specific expertise. However, many individuals volunteer their 
time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Foundation with specific assistance programs. 
The Foundation does not track the extent or quantity of donated services by its volunteers, and 
accordingly, no monetary or nonmonetary information has been disclosed. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation is a Not-for-Profit tax-exempt Corporation organized under Internal Revenue 
Code Section 501(c)(3) and is classified as other than a private foundation. A comparable 
exemption has been granted by the State of California under the Revenue and Taxation Code 
23701(d).  However, any unrelated business income may be subject to taxation. The Foundation 
had no obligation for any unrelated business income tax during the year. 
 
The Foundation’s Forms 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years 
ending June 30, 2016, 2017 and 2018 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for 3 years 
from the date of filing.   
 
Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncement 
 
On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation 
of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and 
understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and 
availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about 
expenses and investment return. The Foundation has adjusted the presentation of these financial 
statements accordingly.  
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NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, 
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides the framework for measuring fair value. 
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices 
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under 
FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets or liabilities in active markets that the plan has the ability to access. 

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

 quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
 quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
 inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
 inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market 

data by correlation or other means. 
 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must 
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair 
value measurement. 

 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques 
used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair 
value. 
  

Money Market Funds - Balances in money market accounts valued are valued at the broker 
statement values, which represent the amounts for which the Foundation could convert the 
money market funds to cash. 
 
Mutual Funds – Shares of mutual funds are valued at quoted market prices, which represent 
the net assets value of shares held by the Foundation at year-end. 
 
Equity Securities – Equity securities are valued at last quoted sales price as of the close of 
trading at year-end; such securities, not traded on the year-end date, are valued at the last 
quoted bid price. 
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NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, (continued) 
 

Hedge Funds – The Multi-Strategy Fund is valued by the independent investment managers 
of the fund. The market value of the fund is obtained from the investment statements provided 
by the investment trustee. 
 

Private Real Estate Investment Fund – The private real estate investment fund is valued at 
acquisition cost adjusted for current year earnings. The market value of the fund is obtained 
from the investment statements provided by the investment trustee. 
 

Exchange Traded Notes – These investments are valued at last quoted sales price as of the 
close of trading at year-end; such securities, not traded on the year-end date, are valued at the 
last quoted bid price. 

 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative 
of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Foundation 
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the 
use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial 
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 
 
The fair value measurements and levels within the fair value hierarchy of those measurements 
for the assets reported at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2019
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Net Asset Value 

Short-term investments:
Money market funds 4,369$           -$               4,369$          -$                -$                 
Mutual funds 4,995,160      4,995,160      -                -                  -                   
SWIFT 2,929,435      -                 2,908,747     -                  20,688             

Total short-term investments 7,928,964      4,995,160      2,913,116     -                  20,688             

Long-term investments:
Money market funds 938,482         -                 938,482        -                  -                   
Equity securities 13,532,603    13,532,603    -                -                  -                   
Mutual funds 31,327,842    31,327,842    -                -                  -                   
Hedge fund 161,556         -                 -                -                  161,556           
Private real estate investment fund 474,779         -                 -                -                  474,779           
Exchange traded notes 107,314         107,314         -                -                  -                   

Total long-term investments 46,542,576    44,967,759    938,482        -                  636,335           

Total investments 54,471,540$  49,962,919$  3,851,598$   -$                657,023$         
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NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, (continued) 
 
The following is a reconciliation of investments in which significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 
were used in determining fair value on a recurring basis: 
 

Beginning Net Realized

Change in 
Unrealized 

Appreciation/ Ending
Investments Balance Gain (Loss) (Depreciation) Balance

Hedge fund 186,304$       -$               (24,748)$        161,556$       
Real estate investment fund 581,348         -                 (106,569)        474,779         

767,652$       -$               (131,317)$      636,335$       

 
 

A summary of investment income for the year ended June 30, 2019 follows: 
 

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Interest and dividends, net 127,073$       2,379,606$    2,506,679$    
Realized and unrealized gains

and (losses) on investments, net 141,288         (168,926)        (27,638)          
Deficit in endowment value 18,269           (18,269)          -                 

Total investment income 286,630$       2,192,411$    2,479,041$    
 

 
Investment fees for the year ended June 30, 2019 amounted to $127,716 and are netted 
against investment income on the Statement of Activities. 
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NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, (continued) 
 
SWIFT Investments 
 
The Foundation has pooled investments with the CSU Systemwide Investment Fund Trust 
(SWIFT). As a result of a 2007 change in Education Code 89721(l) that allowed CSU to self-
manage student tuition and fees, CSU created a central banking system and created the SWIFT 
investment portfolio for the purpose of enhancing centralized cash and investment management. 
Because the central banking system and SWIFT are inextricably linked, each member in the 
central banking system is also a member in SWIFT, also referred to collectively as The Bank of 
CSU. These funds are reported as a short-term investment. The SWIFT consists of investments 
of cash on an overnight and/or short-term basis, the funds representing the float on funds 
collected from all eligible sources prior to their use for payment of accounts payable and payroll. 
Excess cash over and above what is needed to fund short-term payables and payroll are 
transferred to medium or longer term investments. 
 
The Foundation relies upon information provided by the SWIFT in estimating the fair value 
position of its holdings in it. The Foundation's holdings in SWIFT had a value of $2,929,435 as of 
June 30, 2019.  SWIFT is not subject to a credit quality rating. At June 30, 2019, SWIFT had 
invested $155 million in asset and mortgage backed securities. SWIFT also had $11 million 
invested in repurchase agreements. The allocated totals for each investment type are derived 
from the percentage of the Foundation’s investment balance in relation to the pool’s investment 
balance applied to the pools total balance for each investment category. 
 
NOTE 3: INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
The Foundation’s portfolio shall be invested with the objective of long-term growth assets. With 
this long-term objective in mind, the portfolio shall be invested to provide safety through 
diversification in a portfolio of common stocks, bonds, cash equivalents, and other investments, 
all of which may reflect varying rates of return. 
 
The investments shall also be diversified within asset classes (e.g., equities shall be diversified 
by economic sector, industry, quality, and size). Portfolio diversification provides protection 
against a single security or class of securities having a disproportionate impact on aggregate 
performance. 
 
The Foundation endeavors to invest in strategies and investments that avoid a permanent loss of 
capital, with the exception of alternative investments, such as venture capital. The Foundation is 
willing to accept a temporary loss of capital if the return to risk profile is reasonable. 
 
As a general rule, the Foundation will follow the Prudent Investor guidelines widely used in the 
investment management industry, the guidelines of the CFA Institute, and the general fiduciary 
standards described in the Uniform Prudent Investment Act (UPIA), as well as the Uniform 
Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). 
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NOTE 4: ENDOWMENT 
 
The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 240 individual funds established for a 
variety of purposes, all of which are donor-restricted. As required by generally accepted 
accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported 
based on the existence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift 
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to 
the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation retains in perpetuity (a) the original 
value of gifts donated to the endowment, and (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the 
endowment. Donor-restricted amounts not retained in perpetuity are appropriated for expenditure 
by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by the 
UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making 
a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration 
and preservation of the endowment fund; (2) the purposes of the Foundation and the donor-
restricted endowment fund; (3) general economic conditions; (4) the possible effect of inflation 
and deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; (6) 
other resources of the Foundation; and (7) the investment policies of the Foundation.  
  
NOTE 5: ENDOWMENT SPENDING POLICY 
 
The spending policy should meet current operating needs and protect the future purchasing power 
of the Foundation. However, spending policies which provide complete assurance against the 
loss of purchasing power also create a high degree of spending instability. Thus, the basic 
challenge is to create a policy which offers a reasonable defense against loss of purchasing 
power, but which also stabilizes the amount available from the Foundation for spending. 
 
Taking these factors into consideration, the Foundation’s Investment Committee has determined 
that the pay-out from the Foundation’s endowment accounts, which approximates 4.0% of the 
market value averaged over a three-year period, is adequate to supplement the current operating 
needs. The maximum annual spending rate for the endowment shall not exceed 4.0% of the prior 
three years average market value of the portfolio. For funds that have been invested for less than 
three full years, the following rates of spending shall be allowed: 
 

0-1 Year   No funds shall be allocated for spending 
1-2 Years  4.0% of the market value at the end of Year One 
2-3 Years  4.0% of the average of the market values at the end of Years One and Two 
Over 3 Years  4.0% of the average of the market values of the prior three years 

 
If an endowment drops below its historic gift value, normally all spending will be suspended until 
such time as the endowment regains positive status, unless the Foundation believes it is prudent 
to distribute from a fund that is below its historic value. 
 
As of June 30, 2019, a small portion of the endowments are under their historic gift value. The 
resulting amount needed to bring the endowments to a positive status was $327 at June 30, 2019. 
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NOTE 6: ENDOWMENT INVESTMENT ASSET ALLOCATION 
 
The long-term target asset allocation for the investment portfolio is recommended by the 
Foundation’s investment consultant and approved by the Foundation to facilitate the achievement 
of the long-term investment objectives within the established risk parameters. As the allocation of 
funds among asset classes may be the single most important determinant of the investment 
performance, the assets shall be divided into the following asset classes: 
 

Maximum % Minimum % Target %

Large Cap Equity 33.00% 17.00% 25.00%
Small (Mid) Cap Equity 10.00% 5.00% 7.50%
Developed Int'l. Equity 26.00% 14.00% 20.00%
Emerging Markets 7.00% 0.00% 5.00%
Real Estate (Public) 5.00% 0.00% 2.50%
Real Estate (Private) 5.00% 0.00% 2.50%
Commodities 5.00% 0.00% 2.50%
Fixed Income 33.00% 17.00% 25.00%
Alternatives 13.00% 0.00% 10.00%  

 
The actual asset allocation, which will fluctuate with market conditions, will receive the regular 
scrutiny of the Foundation’s investment consultant who will recommend, when appropriate, that 
the Foundation make changes to the policy. 
 
NOTE 7: SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS 
 
The Foundation is the beneficiary of various charitable remainder trusts (CRTs) which provide for 
the payment of distributions to the grantor or other designated beneficiary over the trust’s term 
(generally the designated beneficiary’s lifetime). At the end of the trust’s term, the remaining 
assets are available to the Foundation. The Foundation recognizes the fair value of its interest in 
the trust at the time the trust is established as a contribution. Fair value is based on the present 
value of the estimated future benefits to be received using discount rates ranging from 6 percent 
to 10 percent. Assets held in the charitable remainder trusts totaled $5,424,912 at June 30, 2019 
and are reported at fair value, as part of the long-term investments on the Statement of Financial 
Position depending on the nature of the assets. The Foundation did not receive additional 
contributions to split-interest agreements during the year ended June 30, 2019. The Foundation 
revalues its liability to make distributions to the other designated beneficiaries annually based on 
mortality tables and other applicable factors. The change in the value of the split-interest 
agreements recorded for the year ended June 30, 2019 was a decrease of $350,876 which 
resulted in a change in net assets without donor restrictions. 
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NOTE 8: PROMISES TO GIVE 
 
Unconditional promises to give consisted of the following at June 30, 2019: 
 
Nature of promises to give:

Endowment funds 262,021$        
Other purpose restrictions 1,305,871       

Total 1,567,892$     

 
 
Amounts due in:

Less than one year 918,920$        
One to five years 639,148          
Five to ten years 9,824              

Total promises to give, net 1,567,892$     

 
Promises to give were recognized at the stated value of the gifts. The current year present value 
discount was $29,483 based on applicable U.S. treasury yields for the applicable issue maturity. 
 
NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2019: 
 
Depreciable assets

Equipment, furniture and fixtures 349,968$         
Less: accumulated depreciation (309,833)

Property, plant and equipment, net 40,135$           
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $46,796.  
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NOTE 10: RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS ON NET ASSETS 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the Foundation’s net assets with donor restrictions were allocated as follows:  
 
Restricted by Donors for the Following Purposes:

Palm Desert Campus 1,371,639$      
Jack H. Brown College of Business & Public Administration 1,123,177        
College of Natural Sciences 1,830,163        
College of Arts & Letters 567,098           
College of Social & Behavioral Sciences 323,192           
College of Education 816,624           
College of Extended and Global Education 14,476             
Athletics 310,084           
Information Resource & Technology 16,027             
Undergraduate Studies 207,654           
Academic Affairs 409,486           
Library 66,553             
Student Services 260,647           
University Advancement 1,544,441        
Expendable Scholarships 2,422,801        
Pledges Receivable (various gifts) 1,567,892        
Charitable Remainder Trusts 4,741,892        
Other numerous miscellaneous donor restrictions 92,590             

Total Net Assets with Purpose Restrictions 17,752,873      

Endowment Fund 41,117,991      
Underwater Endowments (327)                 

Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 58,870,537$    
  

 
The Foundation’s governing board has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions of 
$1,379,432, net assets for the following purposes as of June 30, 2019: 
 
Board-Designated Net Assets

Scholarship Reserve 264,194$       
Economic Uncertainty Reserve 74,615           

Total Board-Designated Net Assets 338,809$       
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NOTE 10: RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS ON NET ASSETS, (continued) 
 
Endowment net asset composition consists of the following at June 30, 2019: 
 

Without Donor With Donor Total Endowment
Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Endowment Fund (327)$             41,117,991$  41,117,664$        
 

 
Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows: 
 

Without Donor With Donor Total Endowment
Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Endowment net assets 
beginning of year (18,596)$        39,660,116$  39,641,520$       

Contributions, net of gift admin fee -                 1,321,365      1,321,365           

Endowment assets appropriated for expenditure -                 (1,413,127)     (1,413,127)          

Interest and dividends, net of investment fees -                 1,567,906      1,567,906           

Deficit in endowment 18,269           (18,269)          -                      
Endowment net assets 

end of year (327)$             41,117,991$  41,117,664$       
 

 
From time-to-time, the fair value of endowment funds associated with individual donor-restricted 
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the Foundation to 
retain as a fund of perpetual duration, underwater endowments. As of June 30, 2019, funds with 
original gift values of $15,950, and fair values of $15,623, and deficiencies of $327 were reported 
in net assets with donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2018, funds with original gift values of 
$937,209, and fair values of $918,613, and deficiencies of $18,596 were reported in net assets 
with donor restrictions. These deficiencies, which the Foundation believes are temporary, resulted 
from unfavorable market fluctuations. The Board determined that continued appropriation during 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 for certain programs was prudent.   
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NOTE 11: TRANSFERS TO AND FROM THE UNIVERSITY (INCLUDING OTHER 
AUXILIARY ORGANIZATIONS) 

 
During  the year, transfers were made to the University (including other auxiliary organizations) 
and are listed on the statement of activities as Transfers to Related Entities. For the year ended 
June 30, 2019 these transfers consisted of the following: 
 
Reimbursement to UEC for payroll processing for gift funds 287,773$          
Reimbursements to UEC for misc. programs/staff awards/luncheons 23,211              
Transfer to CSUSB for reimbursements for various services provided 200,931            

Total 511,915$          
 

During the year, transfers were received from the University (including other auxiliary 
organizations) and are listed on the statement of activities as Transfers from Related Entities. For 
the year ended June 30, 2019 these transfers consisted of the following: 
 
Transfer scholarship and support funds from ASI 103,958$          
Miscellaneous program transfers from CSUSB 61,929              
Miscellaneous program transfers from Santos Manuel Student Union 500                   
Miscellaneous program transfers from UEC 114,713            

Total 281,100$          
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NOTE 12: RELATED PARTIES AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the Foundation operates under an agreement with the Trustees as an 
auxiliary organization of the University. Accordingly, essentially all revenues, and realization of 
certain assets, are dependent upon the continuation of this agreement. 
 
A schedule of related party transactions between the Foundation, the University and other 
auxiliary organizations as of June 30, 2019 is as follows: 
 

Santos
Associated Manuel University
Students Student Enterprises

University Incorporated Union Corporation Total

Revenues:
Payments received from Univ/Aux for 

services, space, and programs. 222,753$      52,755$        -$              109,342$      384,850$      

Expenses:
Payments to Univ/Aux for salaries of 

personnel working on contracts, 
grants, and other programs. 187,715        -                -                -                187,715        

Payments to Univ/Aux for other than 
salaries of personnel. 2,060,487     1,650            14,881          310,656        2,387,674     

Due to:
Accounts Payable to Univ/Aux. (442,749)       -                (1,840)           (5,650)           (450,239)       

Receivable from:
Accounts receivable from Univ/Aux. 25,468          -                -                3,600            29,068          

Transfers (net) (139,002)       103,958        -                (196,271)       (231,315)        
 
 
NOTE 13: AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY  

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other 
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. 
The Foundation has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash 
equivalents, short-term debt and equity securities, and receivables due within the next 12 months.  
 
For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month 
period, The Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of scholarships 
and designated gift administration as well as the general and administrative services undertaken 
to support those activities to be general expenditures. 
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NOTE 13: AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY, (continued) 
 
In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, 
The Foundation operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to 
cover general expenditures. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies the sources and 
uses of The Foundation’s cash and shows positive cash generated by operations for fiscal years 
2018 and 2019. 
 
As of June 30, 2018 and 2019, the following tables show the total financial assets held by The 
Foundation and the amounts of those financial assets could readily be made available within one 
year of the balance sheet date to meet general expenditures. None of the financial assets are 
subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general 
expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date. 
 
Financial Assets: 2019 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,639,961$      3,121,394$      
Investments Convertible to Cash in the Next 12 Months 7,928,964        7,282,699        
Other Receivables 286,537           286,634           
Due From Related Party 29,068             -                   
Promises to Give, Net 1,567,892        1,293,758        
Other Long-Term Assets 46,582,711      44,988,640      

Total 62,035,133$    56,973,125$    

Financial Assets Available to Meet General Expenditures
    Over the Next 12 Months: 2019 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,639,961$      3,121,394$      
Other Receivables 286,537           286,634           
Due From Related Party 29,068             -                   
Current Portion of Contributions for General Expenditures 918,920           973,733           
Investments Not Encumbered by Donor or Board Restrictions 7,928,964        7,282,699        

Total 14,803,450$    11,664,460$    

 
 

NOTE 14: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On August 15, 2019, the term of one of the Foundation’s charitable remainder trusts (CRTs) 
expired. As a result, the CRT was dissolved and the remaining assets were made available to the 
Foundation. The total value of the CRT at the time of dissolution was $3,677,491. Of this amount, 
$3,214,127 was transferred into the Endowment, $279,489 was made available for current 
operational use, and $183,875 (5%) was recognized as gift fee revenue in accordance with the 
Foundation’s gift policies. 
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Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,639,961    
Short-term investments 7,928,964    
Accounts receivable, net 315,605    
Capital lease receivable, current portion —    
Notes receivable, current portion —    
Pledges receivable, net 1,567,892    
Prepaid expenses and other current assets —    

Total current assets 15,452,422   
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents —    
Accounts receivable, net —    
Capital lease receivable, net of current portion —    
Notes receivable, net of current portion —    
Student loans receivable, net —    
Pledges receivable, net —    
Endowment investments 41,117,664    
Other long-term investments 5,424,912    
Capital assets, net 40,135    
Other assets —    

Total noncurrent assets 46,582,711   
Total assets 62,035,133   

Deferred outflows of resources:
Unamortized loss on debt refunding —    
Net pension liability —    
Net OPEB liability —    
Others —    

Total deferred outflows of resources —    
Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 586,553    
Accrued salaries and benefits —    
Accrued compensated absences, current portion —    
Unearned revenues —    
Capital lease obligations, current portion —    
Long-term debt obligations, current portion —    
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, current portion —    
Depository accounts —    
Other liabilities 230,301    

Total current liabilities 816,854   
Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion —    
Unearned revenues —    
Grants refundable —    
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion —    
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion —    
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of current portion —    
Depository accounts —    
Net other postemployment benefits liability —    
Net pension liability —    
Other liabilities 4,456,539    

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,456,539   
Total liabilities 5,273,393   

Deferred inflows of resources:
Service concession arrangements —    
Net pension liability —    
Net OPEB liability —    
Unamortized gain on debt refunding —    
Nonexchange transactions —    
Others 968,310    

Total deferred inflows of resources 968,310   
Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 40,135    
Restricted for: —    

Nonexpendable – endowments 41,117,664    
Expendable: —    

Scholarships and fellowships —    
Research —    
Loans —    
Capital projects —    
Debt service —    
Others 13,296,334    

Unrestricted 1,339,297    
Total net position $ 55,793,430   

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation
Schedule of Net Position

June 30, 2019
(for inclusion in the California State University)

See the accompanying independent's auditor's report.
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Revenues:
Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, gross $ —    
Scholarship allowances (enter as negative) —    

Grants and contracts, noncapital:
Federal —    
State —    
Local —    
Nongovernmental —    

Sales and services of educational activities —    
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross —    

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative) —    
Other operating revenues —    

Total operating revenues —    
Expenses:

Operating expenses:
Instruction —    
Research —    
Public service —    
Academic support —    
Student services —    
Institutional support 2,145,286    
Operation and maintenance of plant —    
Student grants and scholarships 1,471,134    
Auxiliary enterprise expenses 260,683    
Depreciation and amortization 46,796    

Total operating expenses 3,923,899   
Operating income (loss) (3,923,899)  

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State appropriations, noncapital —    
Federal financial aid grants, noncapital —    
State financial aid grants, noncapital —    
Local financial aid grants, noncapital —    
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital —    
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital —    
Gifts, noncapital 4,765,904    
Investment income (loss), net 2,479,041    
Endowment income (loss), net —    
Interest expense —    
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) - excl. interagency transfers (529,404)   
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) - interagency transfers —    

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 6,715,541   
Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses) 2,791,642   

State appropriations, capital —    
Grants and gifts, capital —    
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments 1,722,963    

Increase (decrease) in net position 4,514,605   
Net position:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 51,278,825    
Restatements
Net position at beginning of year, as restated 51,278,825    
Net position at end of year $ 55,793,430   

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

June 30, 2019

(for inclusion in the California State University)

See the accompanying independent's auditor's report.
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1 Cash and cash equivalents:
Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowment $                              - 
All other restricted cash and cash equivalent                                 -

Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents                                 -
Current cash and cash equivalents                  5,639,961 

Total $                5,639,961 

2.1 Composition of investments:

Current Noncurrent Total
Money market funds $                       4,369 $                   938,482               942,851
Repurchase agreements                                 -                                 -                           -
Certificates of deposit                                 -                                 -                           -
U.S. agency securities                                 -                                 -                           -
U.S. treasury securities                                 -                                 -                           -
Municipal bonds                                 -                                 -                           -
Corporate bonds                                 -                                 -                           -
Asset backed securities                                 -                                 -                           -
Mortgage backed securities                                 -                                 -                           -
Commercial paper                                 -                                 -                           -
Mutual funds                   4,995,160                 31,327,842          36,323,002
Exchange traded funds                                 -                      107,314               107,314
Equity securities                                 -                 13,532,603          13,532,603
Alternative investments

Private equity (including limited partnerships                                 -                                 -                           -
Hedge funds                                 -                      161,556               161,556
Managed futures                                 -                                 -                           -
Real estate investments (including REITs                                 -                      474,779               474,779
Commodities                                 -                                 -                           -
Derivatives                           -
Other alternative investment types                                 -                                 -                           -

Other external investment pools (excluding SWIFT                                 -                                 -                           -
Other investments                   2,929,435                                 -            2,929,435
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF                                 -                                 -                           -
State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF                                 -                                 -                           -

Total investments                   7,928,964                 46,542,576          54,471,540
Less endowment investments (enter as negative number                                 -              (41,117,664)       (41,117,664)

Total investments, net of endowments $                7,928,964                   5,424,912          13,353,876

2.2 Fair value hierarchy in investments:

Total

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs (Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) Net Asset Value (NAV)

Money market funds $                   942,851 $                              - $            942,851 $                           - $                                   - 
Repurchase agreements                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Certificates of deposit                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
U.S. agency securities                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
U.S. treasury securities                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Municipal bonds                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Corporate bonds                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Asset backed securities                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Mortgage backed securities                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Commercial paper                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Mutual funds                 36,323,002                 36,323,002                           -                              -                                      -
Exchange traded funds                      107,314                      107,314                           -                              -                                      -
Equity securities                 13,532,603                 13,532,603                           -                              -                                      -
Alternative investments

Private equity (including limited partnerships                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Hedge funds                      161,556                                 -                           -                              -                          161,556
Managed futures                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Real estate investments (including REITs                      474,779                                 -                           -                              -                          474,779
Commodities                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Derivatives                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Other alternative investment types                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -

Other external investment pools (excluding SWIFT                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
Other investments                   2,929,435                                 -            2,908,747                              -                            20,688
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -
State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -

Total investments $          54,471,540             49,962,919         3,851,598                            -                      657,023

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation
Other Information

June 30, 2019
(for inclusion in the California State University)

See the accompanying independent's auditor's report.
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2.3 Investments held by the University under contractual agreements: Current Noncurrent Total
Investments held by the University under contractual agreements (e.g CSU Consolidate
SWIFT Inv pool): $               2,929,435 $                           -   $         2,929,435 

3.1 Composition of capital assets:

Balance
June 30, 2018 Reclassifications

Prior Period 
Additions

Prior Period 
Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2018 

(Restated) Additions Retirements

Transfer of 
completed 

CWIP
Balance

June 30, 2019
Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable capital assets:
Land and land improvements $                              - $                              - $                        - $                           - $                                   - $                            - $                        - $                        - $                        - 
Works of art and historical treasures                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Construction work in progress (CWIP)                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Intangible assets:

Rights and easements                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Patents, copyrights and trademarks                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Intangible assets in progress (PWIP)                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Licenses and permits                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Other intangible assets

                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -

Total intangible assets                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable capital assets                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -

Depreciable/Amortizable capital assets:
Buildings and building improvement                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Improvements, other than buildings                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Infrastructure                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Leasehold improvements                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Personal property:
Equipment                      307,310                                 -                           -                              -                          307,310                      42,658                           -                           -               349,968
Library books and materials                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Intangible assets:

Software and websites                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Rights and easements                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Patents, copyrights and trademarks                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Licenses and permits                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Other intangible assets

                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -

Total intangible assets                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Total depreciable/amortizable capital assets                      307,310                                 -                           -                              -                          307,310                      42,658                           -                           -               349,968

Total capital assets                      307,310                                 -                           -                              -                          307,310                      42,658                           -                           -               349,968

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:  (enter as negative number, except 
for reductions enter as positive number)
Buildings and building improvement                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Improvements, other than buildings                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Infrastructure                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Leasehold improvements                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Personal property:

Equipment                   (263,037)                                 -                           -                              -                       (263,037)              (46,796.00)                           -                           -            (309,833)
Library books and materials                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -

Intangible assets:
Software and websites                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Rights and easements                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Patents, copyrights and trademarks                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Licenses and permits                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Other intangible assets

                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -

Total intangible assets                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                   (263,037)                                 -                           -                              -                       (263,037)                   (46,796)                           -                           -            (309,833)

Total capital assets, net $                     44,273                                 -                           -                              -                            44,273                     (4,138)                           -                           -                 40,135

See the accompanying independent's auditor's report.
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3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense:
Depreciation and amortization expense related to capital asset $                     46,796 
Amortization expense related to other assets                                 -

Total depreciation and amortization $                     46,796 

4 Long-term liabilities:

Balance
June 30, 2018

Prior Period 
Adjustments/Reclas

sifications

Balance
June 30, 2018 

(Restated) Additions Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2019 Current Portion
Noncurrent 

Portion
1. Accrued compensated absences $                              - $                              - $                        - $                           - $                                   - $                            - $                        - $                        - 

2. Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -

3. Capital lease obligations:
Gross balance                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
Unamortized net premium/(discount)                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -

Total capital lease obligations                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -

4. Long-term debt obligations:
4.1 Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
4.2 Commercial paper                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
4.3 Notes payable (SRB related)                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
4.4 Others:

                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
                                -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -

Total others                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -
Sub-total long-term debt                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -

4.5 Unamortized net bond premium/(discount)                                 -                           -                               -                           -                           -
Total long-term debt obligations                                 -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -

Total long-term liabilities $                              -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -

5 Capital lease obligations schedule:

Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest
Year ending June 30:
2020                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2021                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2022                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2023                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2024                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2025 - 2029                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2030 - 2034                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2035 - 2039                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2040 - 2044                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2045 - 2049                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Thereafter                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Total minimum lease payments $                              -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -

Less: amounts representing interest                           -
Present value of future minimum lease payments                           -
Unamortized net premium/(discount)                           -

Total capital lease obligations                           -
Less: current portion                           -
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion $                        - 

Capital lease obligations related to SRB All other capital lease obligations Total capital lease obligations

See the accompanying independent's auditor's report.
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6 Long-term debt obligations schedule:

Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest

Year ending June 30:
2020                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2021                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2022                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2023                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2024                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2025 - 2029                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2030 - 2034                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2035 - 2039                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2040 - 2044                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
2045 - 2049                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Thereafter                           -                               -                           -                           -                           -
Total minimum payments $                              -                                 -                           -                              -                                      -                               -                           -                           -                           -

Less: amounts representing interest                           -
Present value of future minimum payments                           -
Unamortized net premium/(discount)                           -

Total long-term debt obligations                           -
Less: current portion                           -
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion $                        - 

7 Transactions with related entities:
Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, grants, 
and other programs $                  187,715 
Payments to University for other than salaries of University personn $               2,060,487 

Payments received from University for services, space, and program $                  222,753 
Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component uni $                           -   

Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component unit
Accounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number $                (442,749)
Other amounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number $                           -   
Accounts receivable from University (enter as positive number $                    25,468 
Other amounts receivable from University (enter as positive number $                           -   

8 Restatements/Prior period adjustments:

Debit/(Credit)
Transaction #1

Transaction #2

9 Natural classifications of operating expenses:

Salaries Benefits - Other
Benefits - 
Pension Benefits - OPEB

Scholarships and 
fellowships

Supplies and other 
services

Depreciation 
and 

amortization
Total operating 

expenses
Instruction $                           -   $                           -   $                     -   $                        -   $                                -   $                         -   $                     -   $                     -   
Research                              -                                -                          -                             -                                     -                              -                          -                             -
Public service                              -                                -                          -                             -                                     -                              -                          -                             -
Academic support                              -                                -                          -                             -                                     -                              -                          -                             -
Student services                              -                                -                          -                             -                                     -                              -                          -                             -
Institutional support                              -                                -                          -                             -                                     -                  2,145,286                        -              2,145,286
Operation and maintenance of plan                              -                                -                          -                             -                                     -                              -                          -                             -
Student grants and scholarships                              -                                -                          -                             -                        1,471,134                            -                          -              1,471,134
Auxiliary enterprise expenses                              -                                -                          -                             -                     260,683                        -                 260,683
Depreciation and amortization                              -                                -                          -                             -                                     -                              -                  46,796                 46,796

Total operating expenses $                              - $                              - $                        - $                           - $                    1,471,134 $              2,405,969 $              46,796 $         3,923,899 

Enter transaction description

Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related) All other long-term debt obligations Total long-term debt obligations

Provide a detailed breakdown of the journal entries (at the financial statement line items level) booked to record each restatement/PPA:

Enter transaction description

See the accompanying independent's auditor's report.
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10 Deferred outflows/inflows of resources:
1. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows - unamortized loss on refunding(s $                           -   
Deferred outflows - net pension liability                              -   
Deferred outflows - net OPEB liability                              -   
Deferred outflows - others:                              -   

Total deferred outflows - others                                 -
Total deferred outflows of resources $                              - 

2. Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - service concession arrangement $                           -   
Deferred inflows - net pension liability                              -   
Deferred inflows - net OPEB liability                              -   
Deferred inflows - unamortized gain on debt refunding(s                              -   
Deferred inflows - nonexchange transaction                              -   
Deferred inflows - others

                    968,310 

Total deferred inflows - others                      968,310
Total deferred inflows of resources $                   968,310 

See the accompanying independent's auditor's report.
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2019-1 Segregation of Duties 
 
Conditions and Criteria 
 
During our audit of the CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation, we noted a lack of segregation of 
duties in the newly integrated Accounting Services department process. In the current audit 
year, the Accounting function within the University’s Finance and Administration Services 
division began an organizational restructuring in which the former Auxiliary Accounting 
department was consolidated with the former University General Accounting department to form 
the new Accounting Services department. The reorganization was implemented to improve 
service delivery and continuity, reduce operational redundancies, eliminate unnecessary 
administrative functions, and strengthen communication between functions.  
 
During the consolidation of the two departments, the proper segregation of duties for accounting 
staff was not maintained and several key functions of the accounts payable processes are able 
to be completed by the same individuals. Proper segregation of duties dictates that the function 
or recording, authorization, custody and execution are not dominated by one individual. An 
adequate segregation of duties requires that one individual does not handle a transaction from 
its inception to its completion. Adequately segregated duties helps to reduce the possibility of 
fraud and defalcations from occurring and to ensure the integrity of the information provided by 
the Accounting Services department’s financial reporting system.  
 
Auditor’s Recommendation 
 
As stated above, an adequate segregation of duties requires that one individual does not handle 
a transaction from its inception to its completion. However, we realize that this is due to the 
reorganization of the Auxiliary’s Accounting department. Unless the University’s Finance and 
Administration department performs a detailed review of the roles and responsibilities of each 
staff member and segregate their duties appropriately, there may be no practical corrective 
action possible for this inherent weakness. We believe it is important for management and the 
Board of Directors to be aware that whenever there is a lack of segregation of duties, the 
system is far more susceptible to errors or other irregularities, either intentional or unintentional, 
not being discovered. 
 
Management’s Response 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the reorganization is still in process and Management is reviewing the 
roles and responsibilities of each staff as well as developing the appropriate processes and 
procedures for the new Accounting Services team.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Foundation as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
 
We have previously audited the Foundation’s 2017 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements. In our opinion and our report 
dated September 18, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented 
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, is consistent, in all material respects, with 
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The supplementary information on pages 24-32 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 21, 2018, on our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
 

 
San Bernardino, California 
September 21, 2018 
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2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,121,394$      4,246,876$      
Short-term investments 7,282,699 4,762,574
Other receivables 286,634 267,630
Promises to give, net 1,293,758 2,139,490
Long-term investments 39,641,520 37,701,776
Long-term investments-CRTs 5,302,847 5,409,427
Property, plant and equipment, net 44,273 87,770

Total assets 56,973,125$    54,615,543$    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 330,253$         526,765$         
Accrued liabilities 61,199 3,486
Other long-term liabilities to beneficiaries 1,536,753 1,641,239

Total liabilities 1,928,205        2,171,490        

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 498,986           547,165           
Temporarily restricted 21,267,910      20,390,656      
Permanently restricted 33,278,024      31,506,232      

Total net assets 55,044,920      52,444,053      

Total liabilities and net assets 56,973,125$    54,615,543$    

 



CSUSB PHILANTHROPIC FOUNDATION 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2017) 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-7- 

 
Temporarily Permanently 2018 2017

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total Total

REVENUES
Contributions -$              3,263,953$     862,653$        4,126,606$     6,734,725$     
Interest and dividends 1,763,015 -                 -                  1,763,015 935,978
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments -                (145,031)        -                  (145,031)         3,118,748       
Realized gain on investments -                -                 909,139 909,139          239,952          
Deficit in endowment values (17,795)         17,795            -                  -                  -                  
Change in value in split interest agreements (246,840)       -                 -                  (246,840)         (109,222)         
Miscellaneous income 1,759 -                 -                  1,759              1,852              
Restrictions released 2,259,463     (2,259,463)     -                  -                  -                  

Total program revenues 3,759,602     877,254          1,771,792       6,408,648       10,922,033     

Transfers from related entities 458,835 -                 -                  458,835          4,190,501       

Total revenues 4,218,437     877,254          1,771,792       6,867,483       15,112,534     

EXPENSES
Program expenses:

Scholarships 1,441,313 -                 -                  1,441,313       1,382,406
Support services 2,091,993 -                 -                  2,091,993       2,209,568       
Transfers to related entities 586,076 -                 -                  586,076          582,794          
Transfer of art collection to CSUSB -                -                 -                  -                  3,462,972       

Management and general 147,234        -                 -                  147,234          165,015          

Total program and general 
   expenses 4,266,616     -                 -                  4,266,616       7,802,755       

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (48,179)         877,254          1,771,792       2,600,867       7,309,779       

NET ASSETS, beginning of year 547,165        20,390,656     31,506,232     52,444,053     45,134,274     

NET ASSETS, end of year 498,986$      21,267,910$   33,278,024$   55,044,920$   52,444,053$   
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2018 2017

EXPENSES
Administrative costs 141,061$          105,385$         
Bad Debts 94 -                   
Bank and credit fees 8,932 9,517               
Capital outlay 9,211 35,610             
Conferences and meetings 128,708 216,503           
Contract services 493,526 673,684           
Depreciation 50,279 49,940             
Dues, memberships and subscriptions 3,116 16,025             
Insurance 15,215 14,492             
Other expenses 714,072 556,104           
Postage 3,689 3,961               
Printing 9,143 16,642             
Professional development and training 1,864 3,829               
Professional fees 22,382 17,731             
Public relations 92,396 72,989             
Rental, equipment and space 18,339 48,577             
Scholarships 1,441,313 1,382,406        
Stipends, room and board 2,962 782                  
Supplies and services 489,255 469,370           
Travel 28,612 58,873             
Utilities and telephone 6,371 4,569               

      Transfers to University 586,076            4,045,766        

     Total expenses 4,266,616$      7,802,755$      
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2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 2,600,867$    7,309,779$    
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
  cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 50,279           49,940           
Contributions permanently restricted (862,653)        (1,700,571)     
Transfers for endowment investment -                 (214,373)        
Transfer of charitable remainder trusts -                 3,846,121      
Noncash investment (income) loss 145,031         (3,118,747)     
(Increase) decrease in:

Other receivables (19,004)          (267,120)        
Promises to give 845,732         8,836,590      

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (196,512)        382,545         
Accrued liabilities 57,713           (163,045)        
Other long-term liabilities to beneficiaries (104,486)        1,641,240      

Total adjustments (83,900)          9,292,580      

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,516,967      16,602,359    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Payments related to the acquisition of capital assets (6,782)            -                 
  Purchase of investments (4,498,320)     (16,794,859)   

  Net cash used for investing activities (4,505,102)     (16,794,859)   

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Cash contributions for endowment 862,653         1,700,571      

  Net cash provided by financing activities 862,653         1,700,571      

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (1,125,482)     1,508,071      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,246,876      2,738,805      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 3,121,394$    4,246,876$    
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation (the Foundation) was created on July 1, 2011 pursuant to 
the general Non-Profit Corporation Laws of the State of California. The Foundation was 
organized to promote and assist education, administration and related services of California 
State University, San Bernardino. The Foundation operates as an auxiliary organization of the 
California State University, San Bernardino (University) under an operating agreement with the 
Trustees of the California State University (Trustees) which expires December 31, 2021. All 
fundraising activities are conducted by the University.  
 
Major Program Services 
 
The Foundation’s major program services include: 
  
Designated Gift Administration, services provided in support of designated gift and endowment 
funds. 
 
Scholarships, including grants-in-aid and other financial assistance to students.  
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Those estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well 
as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Accordingly, actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Management also determines the accounting principles to be used in the 
preparation of the financial statements. A description of the significant accounting policies 
employed in the preparation of these financial statements follows. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation 
 
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The financial 
statements are presented in accordance with accounting standards issued by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB). Accordingly, information regarding the financial position 
and activities are reported according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets that 
are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be designated for specific purposes by 
action of the Board of Trustees, temporarily restricted net assets whose use by the Foundation 
is subject to donor-imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the Foundation or that 
expire by the passage of time, and permanently restricted net assets which are stipulated by 
donors as investments in perpetuity, the income from which may be expendable by the 
Foundation.  
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
(continued) 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentrations 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid 
debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase.  
 
The Foundation maintains its cash in three financial institution accounts. The standard 
insurance amount under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) is $250,000 per 
depositor, per insured bank, for each account ownership category. These balances may at 
times exceed the insured limits. As of June 30, 2018, the Foundation’s cash balances exceeded 
the federally insured limits by $3,011,709. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in 
debt securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. The fair 
value of investments in securities is based on the quoted market price of the underlying 
securities. Investments in real estate are stated at acquisition cost. Unrealized gains and losses 
are included in the change in net assets. Short-term investments consist of debt securities with 
original maturities of twelve months or less. Long-term investments consist of debt securities 
with original maturities greater than twelve months. 
 
Prepaid Expenses 
 
Prepaid expenses are advance payments for products or services that will be used in the 
Foundation’s programs or activities in subsequent periods. 
 
Receivables and Allowances 
 
Other receivables are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Any allowance is 
based on prior years’ experience and management’s estimate of collectability. Management 
estimates that all receivables at June 30, 2018 are fully collectible, and therefore no allowance 
has been presented. 
 
Promises to Give 
 
The Foundation recognizes a contribution when the donor makes a promise to give that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently 
restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. The Foundation 
uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible promises receivable. The allowance is 
based on prior years’ experience and management’s analysis of specific promises made. 
Promises to give are presented at the net present value of the gifts.  
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
(continued) 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost or, if contributed, at fair market value at the 
date of contribution. Intangible assets include patents and software. The Foundation’s policy is 
to capitalize additions and improvements that significantly add to productive capacity or extend 
the useful life of an asset and are above $5,000. Repairs and maintenance are charged to 
operations as incurred. Costs and related allowances for depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment sold or otherwise retired are eliminated from the accounts and gains or losses on 
disposition are included in the changes in net assets. Depreciation and amortization are 
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
 
Donated Materials, Services and Other Assets 
 
Donated materials and other assets such as stocks, bonds and other long-lived assets are 
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as 
increases in unrestricted net assets unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a 
specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions 
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted 
contributions. The Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or 
acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The Foundation reclassifies 
temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. 
 
Donations to the art collection are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of the donation 
and are not subject to depreciation. Items are considered to be part of the art collection if they 
are held for exhibition to the public, for educational purposes, or for research (and not for 
financial gain) and proceeds from the sale of collection items are to be reinvested in other 
collection items. 
 
No amounts have been reflected in the financial statement for donated services. The 
Foundation generally pays for services requiring specific expertise. However, many individuals 
volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Foundation with specific 
assistance programs. The Foundation does not track the extent or quantity of donated services 
by its volunteers, and accordingly, no monetary or nonmonetary information has been disclosed. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation is a Not-for-Profit tax-exempt Corporation organized under Internal Revenue 
Code Section 501(c)(3) and is classified as other than a private foundation. A comparable 
exemption has been granted by the State of California under the Revenue and Taxation Code 
23701(d).  However, any unrelated business income may be subject to taxation. The 
Foundation had no obligation for any unrelated business income tax during the year. 
 
The Foundation’s Forms 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the years 
ending June 30, 2015, 2016 and 2017 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for 3 
years from the date of filing.    
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
(continued) 

 
Subsequent Events 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 21, 2018, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, 
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides the framework for measuring fair value. 
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices 
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy 
under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 
Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 

assets or liabilities in active markets that the plan has the ability to access. 

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

 quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
 quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
 inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
 inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market 

data by correlation or other means. 
 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be 
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair 
value measurement. 

 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair 
value. 
  

Money Market Funds - Balances in money market accounts valued are valued at the broker 
statement values, which represent the amounts for which the Foundation could convert the 
money market funds to cash. 
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NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, (continued) 
 

Mutual Funds – Shares of mutual funds are valued at quoted market prices, which represent 
the net assets value of shares held by the Foundation at year-end. 
 

Equity Securities – Equity securities are valued at last quoted sales price as of the close of 
trading at year-end; such securities, not traded on the year-end date, are valued at the last 
quoted bid price. 
 

Hedge Funds – The Multi-Strategy Fund is valued by the independent investment managers 
of the fund. The market value of the fund is obtained from the investment statements 
provided by the investment trustee. 
 

Private Real Estate Investment Fund – The private real estate investment fund is valued at 
acquisition cost adjusted for current year earnings. The market value of the fund is obtained 
from the investment statements provided by the investment trustee. 
 

Exchange Traded Notes – These investments are valued at last quoted sales price as of the 
close of trading at year-end; such securities, not traded on the year-end date, are valued at 
the last quoted bid price. 

 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the 
Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of 
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting 
date. 
 
The fair value measurements and levels within the fair value hierarchy of those measurements 
for the assets reported at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 
 

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2018
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Net Asset Value 

Short-term investments:
Money market funds 4,345$           -$               4,345$        -$                 -$                 
Mutual funds 4,747,168      4,747,168      -             -                   -                   
SWIFT 2,531,186      -                 2,525,039   -                   6,147               

Total short-term investments 7,282,699      4,747,168      2,529,384   -                   6,147               

Long-term investments:
Money market funds 277,244         -                 277,244      -                   -                   
Equity securities 6,189,547      6,189,547      -             -                   -                   
Mutual funds 37,599,009    37,599,009    -             -                   -                   
Hedge fund 172,739         -                 -             -                   172,739           
Private real estate investment fund 610,158         -                 -             -                   610,158           
Exchange traded notes 95,670           95,670           -             -                   -                   

Total long-term investments 44,944,367    43,884,226    277,244      -                   782,897           

Total investments 52,227,066$  48,631,394$  2,806,628$ -$                 789,044$         
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NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, (continued) 
 
The following is a reconciliation of investments in which significant unobservable inputs 
(Level 3) were used in determining fair value on a recurring basis: 
 

Beginning Net Realized

Change in 
Unrealized 

Appreciation/ Ending
Investments Balance Gain (Loss) (Depreciation) Balance

Hedge fund 186,304$       -$               (13,565)$        172,739$       
Real estate investment fund 581,348         -                 28,810           610,158         

767,652$       -$               15,245$         782,897$       

 
A summary of investments held at June 30, 2018 follows: 
 

Cost Fair Value

Cumulative 
Realized/ 
Unrealized 

Gains (Losses)
Short-term investments:

Vanguard short-term fund 4,800,626$      4,747,168$      (53,458)$          
Common fund - money market 4,345               4,345               -                   
SWIFT 2,500,000        2,531,186        31,186              

7,304,971        7,282,699        (22,272)            

Long-term investments:
Endowments (donor-restricted) 35,284,128      39,641,520      4,357,392         
Charitable remainder trusts 4,816,008        5,302,847        486,839            

40,100,136      44,944,367      4,844,231         

Total investments 47,405,107$    52,227,066$    4,821,959$       
 

 

A summary of investment income for the year ended June 30, 2018 follows: 
 

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted

Permanently 
Restricted Total

Interest and dividends 1,763,015$    -$               -$               1,763,015$    
Realized and unrealized gains

and losses on investments, net -                 (145,031)        909,139         764,108         
Deficit in endowment value (17,795)          17,795           -                 -                 

Total investment income 1,745,220$    (127,236)$      909,139$       2,527,123$    
 

 
 



CSUSB PHILANTHROPIC FOUNDATION 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 
 
 

-16- 

NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS, (continued) 
 
SWIFT Investments 
 
The Foundation has pooled investments with the CSU Systemwide Investment Fund Trust 
(SWIFT). As a result of a 2007 change in Education Code 89721(l) that allowed CSU to self-
manage student tuition and fees, CSU created a central banking system and created the SWIFT 
investment portfolio for the purpose of enhancing centralized cash and investment 
management. Because the central banking system and SWIFT are inextricably linked, each 
member in the central banking system is also a member in SWIFT, also referred to collectively 
as The Bank of CSU. These funds are reported as a short-term investment. The SWIFT 
consists of investments of cash on an overnight and/or short-term basis, the funds representing 
the float on funds collected from all eligible sources prior to their use for payment of accounts 
payable and payroll. Excess cash over and above what is needed to fund short-term payables 
and payroll are transferred to medium or longer term investments. 
 
The Foundation relies upon information provided by the SWIFT in estimating the fair value 
position of its holdings in it. The Foundation's holdings in SWIFT had a value of $2,531,186 as 
of June 30, 2018.  SWIFT is not subject to a credit quality rating. At June 30, 2018, SWIFT had 
invested $289 million in asset and mortgage backed securities. SWIFT also had $10 million 
invested in repurchase agreements. The allocated totals for each investment type is derived 
from the percentage of the Foundation’s investment balance in relation to the pool’s investment 
balance applied to the pools total balance for each investment category. 
 
NOTE 3: INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
The Foundation’s portfolio shall be invested with the objective of long-term growth assets. With 
this long-term objective in mind, the portfolio shall be invested to provide safety through 
diversification in a portfolio of common stocks, bonds, cash equivalents, and other investments, 
all of which may reflect varying rates of return. 
 
The investments shall also be diversified within asset classes (e.g., equities shall be diversified 
by economic sector, industry, quality, and size). Portfolio diversification provides protection 
against a single security or class of securities having a disproportionate impact on aggregate 
performance. 
 
The Foundation endeavors to invest in strategies and investments that avoid a permanent loss 
of capital, with the exception of alternative investments, such as venture capital. The Foundation 
is willing to accept a temporary loss of capital if the return to risk profile is reasonable. 
 
As a general rule, the Foundation will follow the Prudent Investor guidelines widely used in the 
investment management industry, the guidelines of the CFA Institute, and the general fiduciary 
standards described in the Uniform Prudent Investment Act (UPIA), as well as the Uniform 
Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). 
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NOTE 4: ENDOWMENT 
 
The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 200 individual funds established for a 
variety of purposes, all of which are donor-restricted. As required by generally accepted 
accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported 
based on the existence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift 
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to 
the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as permanently 
restricted net assets, (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, and 
(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment. The remaining portion of 
the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified as permanently restricted net assets 
is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for 
expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed 
by UPMIFA. 
 
NOTE 5: ENDOWMENT SPENDING POLICY 
 
The spending policy should meet current operating needs and protect the future purchasing 
power of the Foundation. However, spending policies which provide complete assurance 
against the loss of purchasing power also create a high degree of spending instability. Thus, the 
basic challenge is to create a policy which offers a reasonable defense against loss of 
purchasing power, but which also stabilizes the amount available from the Foundation for 
spending. 
 
Taking these factors into consideration, the Foundation’s Investment Committee has determined 
that the pay-out from the Foundation’s endowment accounts, which approximates 4.0% of the 
market value averaged over a three-year period, is adequate to supplement the current 
operating needs. The maximum annual spending rate for the endowment shall not exceed 4.0% 
of the prior three years average market value of the portfolio. For funds that have been invested 
for less than three full years, the following rates of spending shall be allowed: 
 

0-1 Year   No funds shall be allocated for spending 
1-2 Years  4.0% of the market value at the end of Year One 
2-3 Years  4.0% of the average of the market values at the end of Years One and 

Two 
Over 3 Years  4.0% of the average of the market values of the prior three years 

 
If an endowment drops below its historic gift value, normally all spending will be suspended until 
such time as the endowment regains positive status, unless the Foundation believes it is 
prudent to distribute from a fund that is below its historic value. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, a small portion of the endowments are under their historic gift value. The 
resulting amount needed to bring the endowments to a positive status was $18,596 at June 30, 
2018. 
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NOTE 6: ENDOWMENT INVESTMENT ASSET ALLOCATION 
 
The long-term target asset allocation for the investment portfolio is recommended by the 
Foundation’s investment consultant and approved by the Foundation to facilitate the 
achievement of the long-term investment objectives within the established risk parameters. As 
the allocation of funds among asset classes may be the single most important determinant of 
the investment performance, the assets shall be divided into the following asset classes: 
 

Maximum % Minimum % Target %

Large Cap Equity 33% 17% 25%
Small (Mid) Cap Equity 13% 7% 10%
Developed Int'l. Equity 26% 14% 20%
Emerging Markets 7% 0% 5%
Real Estate (Public) 5% 0% 2.5%
Real Estate (Private) 5% 0% 2.5%
Commodities 5% 0% 2.5%
Fixed Income 33% 17% 25%
Alternatives 13% 0% 10%

 
The actual asset allocation, which will fluctuate with market conditions, will receive the regular 
scrutiny of the Foundation’s investment consultant who will recommend, when appropriate, that 
the Foundation make changes to the policy. 
 
NOTE 7: SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS 
 
The Foundation is the beneficiary of various charitable remainder trusts (CRTs) which provide 
for the payment of distributions to the grantor or other designated beneficiary over the trust’s 
term (generally the designated beneficiary’s lifetime). At the end of the trust’s term, the 
remaining assets are available to the Foundation. The Foundation recognizes the fair value of 
its interest in the trust at the time the trust is established as a contribution. Fair value is based 
on the present value of the estimated future benefits to be received using discount rates ranging 
from 6 percent to 10 percent. Assets held in the charitable remainder trusts totaled $5,302,847 
at June 30, 2018 and are reported at fair value, as part of the long-term investments on the 
Statement of Financial Position depending on the nature of the assets. The Foundation did not 
receive additional contributions to split-interest agreements during the year ended June 30, 
2018. The Foundation revalues its liability to make distributions to the other designated 
beneficiaries annually based on mortality tables and other applicable factors. The change in the 
value of the split-interest agreements recorded for the year ended June 30, 2018 was an 
increase of $246,840. A reevaluation of charitable remainder trust assets and corresponding 
liabilities at June 30, 2018 resulted in a change in unrestricted net assets. 
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NOTE 8: PROMISES TO GIVE 
 
Unconditional promises to give consisted of the following at June 30, 2018: 
 
Nature of promises to give:

Temporarily restricted funds 431,105$        
Endowment funds 862,653          

Total 1,293,758$     

 
 
Amounts due in:

Less than one year 973,733$        
One to five years 308,391          
Five to ten years 11,634            

Total promises to give, net 1,293,758$     

 
Promises to give were recognized at the stated value of the gifts. The current year present value 
discount was $47,032 based on applicable U.S. treasury yields for the applicable issue maturity. 
 
NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2018: 
 
Depreciable assets

Equipment, furniture and fixtures 307,310$         
Less: accumulated depreciation (263,037)

Property, plant and equipment, net 44,273$           

 
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $50,279.  
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NOTE 10: RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS ON NET ASSETS 
 
Permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 totaled $33,278,024 and are to be held 
indefinitely. The income is restricted primarily to support scholarships. Temporarily restricted net 
assets at June 30, 2018 totaled $21, 267,910 and were available for the following purposes: 
 
Restricted by donors for the following purposes:

Palm Desert Campus 308,302$         
College of Business & Public Administration 760,322           
College of Natural Sciences 1,955,024        
College of Arts & Letters 503,275           
College of Social & Behavioral Sciences 277,936           
College of Education 868,084           
College of Extended Learning/International Programs 20,416             
Athletics 232,003           
Information Resource & Technology 15,909             
Undergraduate Studies 154,591           
Academic Affairs 462,054           
Library 68,452             
Student Services 65,372             
University Advancement 580,747           
Expendable Scholarships 2,540,227        
Pledges Receivable (various gifts) 1,293,758        
Charitable Remainder Trusts 4,031,729        
Temporarily Restricted Portion of Endowment 7,116,207        
Other numerous miscellaneous donor restrictions 13,502             

Total temporarily restricted net assets 21,267,910$    
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NOTE 10: RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS ON NET ASSETS, (continued) 
 
Endowment net asset composition consists of the following at June 30, 2018: 
 

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted

Permanently 
Restricted

Total Endowment 
Assets

Donor-restricted
endowment funds (18,596)$        6,382,092$    33,278,024$      39,641,520$        

 
 
Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 
 

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted

Permanently 
Restricted

Total 
Endowment 

Assets
Endowment net assets 

beginning of year (801)$             6,204,450$    31,506,232$  37,709,881$    
New endowment gifts, net of

gift admin fee -                 -                 114,153         114,153           
Pledge receivable, net of

gift admin fee -                 -                 862,653         862,653           
Endowment assets

appropriated for expenditure -                 (1,723,594)     -                 (1,723,594)      
Investment fees -                 (113,770)        -                 (113,770)         
Interest and dividends -                 634,367         794,986         1,429,353        
Deficit in endowment (17,795)          1,380,639      -                 1,362,844        
Endowment net assets 

end of year (18,596)$        6,382,092$    33,278,024$  39,641,520$    
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NOTE 11: TRANSFERS TO AND FROM THE UNIVERSITY (INCLUDING OTHER 
AUXILIARY ORGANIZATIONS) 

 
During  the year, transfers were made to the University (including other auxiliary organizations) 
and are listed on the statement of activities as Transfers to Related Entities. For the year ended 
June 30, 2018 these transfers consisted of the following: 
 
Reimbursement to UEC for payroll processing for gift funds 287,598$          
Reimbursements to UEC for misc. programs/staff awards/luncheons 158,919            
Transfer to CSUSB for reimbursements for various services provided 139,559            

Total 586,076$          

 
During the year, transfers were received from the University (including other auxiliary 
organizations) and are listed on the statement of activities as Transfers from Related Entities. 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 these transfers consisted of the following: 
 
Transfer scholarship and support funds from ASI 111,069$          
Miscellaneous program transfers from CSUSB 133,191            
Miscellaneous program transfers from UEC 214,575            

Total 458,835$          
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NOTE 12: RELATED PARTIES AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the Foundation operates under an agreement with the Trustees as an 
auxiliary organization of the University. Accordingly, essentially all revenues, and realization of 
certain assets, are dependent upon the continuation of this agreement. 
 
A schedule of related party transactions between the Foundation, the University and other 
auxiliary organizations as of June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
 

Santos
Associated Manuel University
Students Student Enterprises

University Incorporated Union Corporation Total

Revenues:

Payments received from Univ/Aux for 
services, space, and programs. 73,877$        56,069$        6,000$          187,112$      323,058$      

Expenses:
Payments to Univ/Aux for salaries of 

personnel working on contracts, 
grants, and other programs. 203,672        -                -                -                203,672        

Payments to Univ/Aux for other than 
salaries of personnel. 4,261,489     -                10,844          177,297        4,449,630     

Due to:

Accounts Payable to Univ/Aux. (219,689)       -                -                (732)              (220,421)       

Receivable from:
Accounts receivable from Univ/Aux. -                -                -                -                -                

Transfers (net) (6,368)           111,069        -                (231,942)       (127,241)       
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Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,121,394    
Short-term investments 7,282,699    
Accounts receivable, net 286,634    
Capital lease receivable, current portion —    
Notes receivable, current portion —    
Pledges receivable, net 1,293,758    
Prepaid expenses and other current assets —    

Total current assets 11,984,485   

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents —    
Accounts receivable, net —    
Capital lease receivable, net of current portion —    
Notes receivable, net of current portion —    
Student loans receivable, net —    
Pledges receivable, net —    
Endowment investments 39,641,520    
Other long-term investments 5,302,847    
Capital assets, net 44,273    
Other assets —    

Total noncurrent assets 44,988,640   

Total assets 56,973,125   

Deferred outflows of resources:
Unamortized loss on debt refunding —    
Net pension liability —    
Net OPEB liability —    
Others —    

Total deferred outflows of resources —    

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 330,253    
Accrued salaries and benefits —    
Accrued compensated absences, current portion —    
Unearned revenues —    
Capital lease obligations, current portion —    
Long-term debt obligations, current portion —    
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, current portion —    
Depository accounts —    
Other liabilities 61,199    

Total current liabilities 391,452   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion —    
Unearned revenues —    
Grants refundable —    
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion —    
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion —    
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of current portion —    
Depository accounts —    
Net other postemployment benefits liability
Net pension liability —    
Other liabilities 3,766,095    

Total noncurrent liabilities 3,766,095   

Total liabilities 4,157,547   

Deferred inflows of resources:
Service concession arrangements —    
Net pension liability —    
Net OPEB liability —    
Unamortized gain on debt refunding —    
Nonexchange transactions —    
Others 1,536,753    

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,536,753   

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 44,273    
Restricted for: —    

Nonexpendable – endowments 39,641,520    
Expendable: —    

Scholarships and fellowships —    
Research —    
Loans —    
Capital projects —    
Debt service —    
Others 11,119,723    

Unrestricted 473,309    

Total net position $ 51,278,825   

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation
Schedule of Net Position

June 30, 2018
(for inclusion in the California State University)
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Revenues:

Operating revenues:
Student tuition and fees, gross $ —    

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative) —    
Grants and contracts, noncapital:

Federal —    
State —    
Local —    
Nongovernmental —    

Sales and services of educational activities —    
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross —    

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative) —    
Other operating revenues —    

Total operating revenues —    

Expenses:

Operating expenses:
Instruction —    
Research —    
Public service —    
Academic support —    
Student services —    
Institutional support 2,678,069    
Operation and maintenance of plant —    
Student grants and scholarships 1,441,313    
Auxiliary enterprise expenses 96,955    
Depreciation and amortization 50,279    

Total operating expenses 4,266,616   

Operating income (loss) (4,266,616)  

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State appropriations, noncapital —    
Federal financial aid grants, noncapital —    
State financial aid grants, noncapital —    
Local financial aid grants, noncapital —    
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital —    
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital —    
Gifts, noncapital 3,263,953    
Investment income (loss), net 2,527,123    
Endowment income (loss), net —    
Interest expense —    
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) - excl. interagency transfers (245,081)   
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) - interagency transfers 458,835    

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 6,004,830   

Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses) 1,738,214   

State appropriations, capital —    
Grants and gifts, capital —    
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments 862,653    

Increase (decrease) in net position 2,600,867   

Net position:
Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 52,444,053    
Restatements (3,766,095)   

Net position at beginning of year, as restated 48,677,958    

Net position at end of year $ 51,278,825   

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2018

(for inclusion in the California State University)
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1 Restricted cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018:
Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments $ —    
All other restricted cash and cash equivalents —    

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents $ —    

2.1 Composition of investments at June 30, 2018:  
Current 

Unrestricted Current Restricted Total Current
Noncurrent 
Unrestricted

Noncurrent 
Restricted Total Noncurrent Total

State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) $ —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Corporate bonds —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Certificates of deposit —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Mutual funds 4,747,168    —    4,747,168    —    37,599,009    37,599,009    42,346,177    
Money Market funds 4,345    —    4,345    —    277,244    277,244    281,589    
Repurchase agreements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Commercial paper —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Asset backed securities —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Mortgage backed securities —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Municipal bonds —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
U.S. agency securities —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
U.S. treasury securities —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Equity securities —    —    —    —    6,189,547    6,189,547    6,189,547    
Exchange traded funds (ETFs) —    —    —    —    95,670    95,670    95,670    
Alternative investments:

Private equity (including limited partnerships) —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Hedge funds —    —    —    —    172,739    172,739    172,739    
Managed futures —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Real estate investments (including REITs) —    —    —    —    610,158    610,158    610,158    
Commodities —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Derivatives —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Other alternative investment types —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Other external investment pools (excluding SWIFT)
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Other major investments:

SWIFT 2,531,186    —    2,531,186    —    —    —    2,531,186    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total investments 7,282,699    —    7,282,699    —    44,944,367    44,944,367    52,227,066    

Less endowment investments (enter as negative number) —    (39,641,520)   (39,641,520)   (39,641,520)   

Total investments 7,282,699    —    7,282,699    —     5,302,847    5,302,847    12,585,546    

2.2 Investments held by the University under contractual agreements at June 30, 2018:
Portion of investments in note 2.1 held by the University under contractual

agreements at June 30, 2018 : —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

2.3 Restricted current investments at June 30, 2018 related to: Amount
     Add description $ —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    

Total restricted current investments at June 30, 2018 $ —    

2.4 Restricted noncurrent investments at June 30, 2018 related to: Amount
Endowment investment $ 39,641,520    
Charitable Remainder Unitrusts 5,302,847    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    

CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation

June 30, 2018
Other Information

(for inclusion in the California State University)
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     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    

Total restricted noncurrent investments at June 30, 2018 $ 44,944,367    
 

2.5 Fair value hierarchy in investments at June 30, 2018:  

Total

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1) 

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs (Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3)

Net Asset Value 
(NAV)

State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) $ —    —    —    —    —    
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) —    —    —    —    —    
Corporate bonds —    —    —    —    —    
Certificates of deposit —    —    —    —    —    
Mutual funds 42,346,177    42,346,177    —    —    —    
Money Market funds 281,589    —    281,589    —    —    
Repurchase agreements —    —    —    —    —    
Commercial paper —    —    —    —    —    
Asset backed securities —    —    —    —    —    
Mortgage backed securities —    —    —    —    —    
Municipal bonds —    —    —    —    —    
U.S. agency securities —    —    —    —    —    
U.S. treasury securities —    —    —    —    —    
Equity securities 6,189,547    6,189,547    —    —    —    
Exchange traded funds (ETFs) 95,670    95,670    —    —    —    
Alternative investments:

Private equity (including limited partnerships) —    —    —    —    —    
Hedge funds 172,739    —    —    172,739    —    
Managed futures —    —    —    —    —    
Real estate investments (including REITs) 610,158    —    —    610,158    —    
Commodities —    —    —    —    —    
Derivatives —    —    —    —    —    
Other alternative investment types —    —    —    —    —    

Other external investment pools (excluding SWIFT)
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
Other major investments:

SWIFT 2,531,186    —    2,525,039    —    6,147    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    

Total investments 52,227,066    48,631,394    2,806,628    782,897    6,147    

Fair Value Measurements Using 
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3.1 Composition of capital assets at June 30, 2018:
Balance Transfers of

Balance Prior period June 30, 2017 Completed Balance
June 30, 2017 Adjustments Reclassifications (restated) Additions Reductions CWIP June 30, 2018

Nondepreciable/nonamortizable capital assets:
Land and land improvements $ —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Works of art and historical treasures —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Construction work in progress (CWIP) —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Intangible assets:

Rights and easements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Patents, copyrights and trademarks —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Internally generated intangible assets in progress —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Licenses and permits —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Other intangible assets:

—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total intangible assets —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total nondepreciable/nonamortizable capital assets —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Depreciable/amortizable capital assets:
Buildings and building improvements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Improvements, other than buildings —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Infrastructure —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Leasehold improvements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Personal property:

Equipment 300,528    —    —    300,528    6,782    —    —    307,310    
Library books and materials —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Intangible assets:
Software and websites —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Rights and easements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Patents, copyright and trademarks —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Licenses and permits —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Other intangible assets:

—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total intangible assets —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total depreciable/amortizable capital assets 300,528    —    —    300,528    6,782    —    —    307,310    

Total capital assets 300,528    —    —    300,528    6,782    —    —    307,310    

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:
Buildings and building improvements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Improvements, other than buildings —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Infrastructure —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Leasehold improvements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Personal property:

Equipment (212,758)   —    —    (212,758)   (50,279)   —    (263,037)   
Library books and materials —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Intangible assets:
Software and websites —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Rights and easements —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Patents, copyright and trademarks —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Licenses and permits —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Other intangible assets:

—    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total intangible assets —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization (212,758)   —    —    (212,758)   (50,279)   —    —    (263,037)   

Total capital assets, net $ 87,770    —    —    87,770    (43,497)   —    —    44,273    

Add description
Add description

Add description

Add description
Add description
Add description

Add description

Add description

Add description
Add description

Add description

Add description

Add description
Add description

Add description
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3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Depreciation and amortization expense related to capital assets $ 50,279   
Amortization expense related to other assets —    

Total depreciation and amortization $ 50,279   

4 Long-term liabilities activity schedule:

Balance
Balance Prior period June 30, 2017 Balance Current Long-term

June 30, 2017 adjustments Reclassifications (restated) Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 portion portion

$ —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
—    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Capital lease obligations:
Gross balance —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Unamortized premium / (discount) on capital lease obligations —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total capitalized lease obligations —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Long-term debt obligations:
Auxiliary revenue bonds —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Commercial paper —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Notes payable related to SRB —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Others: (list by type)
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
     Add description —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total long-term debt obligations —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Unamortized bond premium / (discount) —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
Total long-term debt obligations, net —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total long-term liabilities $ —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

5 Future minimum lease payments - Capital lease obligations:

Principal and Principal and Principal and
Principal Only Interest Only Interest Principal Only Interest Only Interest Principal Only Interest Only Interest

Year ending June 30:
2019 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2020 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2021 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2022 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2023 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2024 - 2028 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2029 - 2033 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2034 - 2038 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2039 - 2043 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2044 - 2048 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2049 - 2053 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2054 - 2058 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2059 - 2063 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2064 - thereafter —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total minimum lease payments —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Less amounts representing interest —    

Present value of future minimum lease payments —    

Unamortized net premium (discount) —    

Total capital lease obligations —    

  Less: current portion —    

Capital lease obligations, net of current portion $ —    

All other capital lease obligations Total capital lease obligations

Accrued compensated absences
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses 

Capital lease obligations related to SRB
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6 Long-term debt obligations schedule:

Principal and Principal and Principal and
Principal Only Interest Only Interest Principal Only Interest Only Interest Principal Only Interest Only Interest

2019 $ —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2020 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2021 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2022 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2023 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2024 - 2028 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2029 - 2033 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2034 - 2038 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2039 - 2043 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2044 - 2048 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2049 - 2053 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2054 - 2058 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2059 - 2063 —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    
2064 - thereafter —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Total minimum payments —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —    

Less amounts representing interest —    

Present value of future minimum payments —    

Unamortized net premium (discount) —    

Total long-term debt obligations —    

  Less: current portion —    

Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion $ —    

7 Calculation of net position:

7.1 Calculation of net position - Net investment in capital assets

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 44,273   
Capital lease obligations, current portion —    
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion —    
Long-term debt obligations, current portion —    
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion —    
Portion of outstanding debt that is unspent at year-end (enter as positive num —    
Other adjustments: (please list)
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    

Net position - Net investment in capital assets $ 44,273   

7.2 Calculation of net position - Restricted for nonexpendable - endowments
Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments $ —    
Endowment investments 39,641,520   
Other adjustments: (please list)
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    

Net position - Restricted for nonexpendable - endowments $ 39,641,520   

Year ending June 30:

All other long-term
debt obligations Total long-term debt obligationsAuxiliary revenue bonds
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8 Transactions with related entities:
Amount

Payments to University for salaries of University personnel working on contracts, grants, and other programs $ 203,672    
Payments to University for other than salaries of University personnel 4,261,489    
Payments received from University for services, space, and programs 73,877    
Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented component units —    
Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely presented component units —    
Accounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number) (219,689)   
Other amounts (payable to) University (enter as negative number) —    
Accounts receivable from University (enter as positive number) —    
Other amounts receivable from University —    

9 Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability
Intentionaly left blank - not required/applicable eff FY17/18

10

Description Amount
     Add description $ —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    
     Add description —    

 Total pollution remediation liabilities $ —    

Less:  current portion —    

Pollution remedition liabilities, net of current portion —    

Pollution remediation liabilities under GASB Statement No. 49:
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11 The nature and amount of the prior period adjustment(s) recorded to beginning net position:
Net Position

  Class Amount
Dr. (Cr.)

Net position as of June 30, 2017, as previously reported $ 52,444,053   
Prior period adjustments:

1 Temp Restricted (3,766,095)  

Net position as of June 30, 2017, as restated $ 48,677,958   

Provide a detailed breakdown of the journal entries (at the financial statement line item level) booked to record each prior period adjustment:
Debit Credit

Net position class:_Temporarily Restricted__
1

Temp Restricted Net Assets $ 3,766,095   
Other liabilities 3,766,095   

Net position class:______________________
2 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
3 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
4 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
5 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
6 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
7 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
8 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
9 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

Net position class:______________________
10 (breakdown of adjusting journal entry)

—    
—    

12 Natural Classifications of Operating Expenses:

Salaries Benefits
Scholarships and 

fellowships
Supplies and other 

services
Depreciation and 

amortization
Total operating 

expenses
Instruction —    —    —    —    —    —    
Research —    —    —    —    —    —    
Public service —    —    —    —    —    —    
Academic support —    —    —    —    —    —    
Student services —    —    —    —    —    —    
Institutional support —    —    —    2,678,069   —    2,678,069   
Operation and maintenance of plant —    —    —    —    —    —    
Student grants and scholarships —    —    1,441,313   —    —    1,441,313   
Auxiliary enterprise expenses —    —    —    96,955   —    96,955   
Depreciation and amortization —    —    —    —    50,279   50,279   

Total —    —    1,441,313   2,775,024   50,279   4,266,616   

 Recognition of third-party lead interest in irrevocable remainder 
trust (GASB 81) 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether CSUSB Philanthropic Foundation’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 

 
San Bernardino, California 
September 21, 2018 
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